
 
 
 

Standards Committee 
 

Date: Tuesday, 29 September 2009 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Brian Ellis 
Tel: 0151 691 8471 
e-mail: branellis@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meetings held on 30 June, 16 July ( 

Standards Hearing Panel) and 7 August (Consideration meeting). 
 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL LETTER AND 
CURRENT PERFORMANCE (Pages 11 - 26) 

 
4. COMPLAINT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN - 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OFF STATHAM ROAD, 
NOCTORUM (Pages 27 - 40) 

 
 To receive a report outlining the findings of the Local Government 

Ombudsman (LGO) following a complaint by the owner of 50 
Newdales Close, Beechwood with regard to application reference 
APP/2006/5560 and the grant of planning permission for the erection 
of 33 No.dwellings on land adjacent to 84 Statham Road, Noctorum. 
The Committee is recommended to note the report and the 
observations of the Local Government Ombudsman  
 
 

5. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 

Public Document Pack



 
 



�����������	

������
�

�������	�
����
�������
�

�����
��� � ����
������
�����������

�
� ���
�������� � �!�"�����
�

�������
�
"�#������
$�%�����
�

&��'�(����
��!����
�
��������
�
���������
�

'�)������ ���
�������� "� �*��
����+
�)������,������-������
�

+
��)�
��
��
!��.����

� $�
�%������
��/���0
�������
�

���1�2�������
�

�)�������� ���
�������� ������-�����
�

��

�
�

3� ���
�����	���	������������

�

!��.�����,���������������*�����
(����������
������*������������������)����
������
)��4���������
��������
���

�����
�*�����
���,������������
��������
����
�	��,���	���������������
�
������������
�������,�������
������5�2������������
��*��������5�

�
�

�� 
��������

�
 ����(���0������������
������,�����)��(����������
�	�������
�
��!���������	�.��
����)�����������������������5�
�
����,����*�
�������
��*����
������
�
���� ���������,�6�,����
��%��)�����������
����
���7����������������
����,����
��
���)���������������.��,��*�����������
���������������,,�������
���������,������������
�
��
�5��
������

�����������.����,�8��
�����������������7�����'���������,�"�*	�% ��
��������
!�
�����
�	�*����)�������������������5�
������9�.�����
����)���
��7������������,����
�����
�,�����������������������������*����
.����(��*���.�������))��)�������(��(��*��
��������
��������������
���������������,�
������������
��*����.����)�����������������������5��
�


� ������
��	������������������

�
#������������
����
:��
�;
;��	�"�<����)��0!�����	�����������!�
����	�)����
��������
,�
��� ��)���� ,����*�
�� ���� ������ ���������
=��  �(��*� �,� >������� 6�(��
�
���*����
�
���� ���������5� 8��� ��,������ ��� ���� ���������
� ��� ���� )��(����� �����
�� �������
��
�
���(��*���=������
����
����)���������������>6����(��������
���*����)�.�������

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



�
� ,���� �
�� ������ .�� (��*��� �
� ���� ���
���=�� +
���
��� ����� �&�.� "�.������ "�.�����
������
��0�&������>�������6�(��
�
���8��(���0������
���
�
���� '�������� �,� "�*	� % � �
�� ������ !�
�����
�	� ��)������ ����� ���� �����
� ���
�
�
��������)���,�������������������������������
�����
����
���
����
�����>6���)����
�
�����*�������)����.��-��
�)������������5�
�
���������� �����
���� ����� ����>6� �)����*��� )�����(�� �
������
�� ����� �������
����
���� �� ����� �
������
��
�� �,� ���� -��� �������� ��(��
�
��� ������� �
�� ���� �����
�

������ ��� )������� �
�� ���
���
� ���
�����5� %�� ������������ ����� �,� ���� -���
�������
�����
���
����������
����
�0�
�

0� �������������)��,�����,�����8��
�����������������
�������
����������*��-������
*�����)�.���?�

0� ��)��(�� )�.���� ��
,���
��� �������� �,,����(�� �������� ��(��
�
���
����
����
��?�

0� ��(��*�������(����,�����
�
��,������.�����
���,,�������
����������������
���
�
 ����(���7��
�
�3��������������)�����
�������
�)��
�.��
����5�
�
������������������)����������)������
����������
�)��
�.��)����
�������,�����������
���
�,���������������5�
�

@� �	���������	����������������

�
#������� �����
����
A� �
�;
;����"�<����)��0!�����	� ����������!�
����	�)����
������
��)���� ,����*�
�� ���� ������ ���������
=��  �(��*� �,� ����
�����)� 6�(��
�
��5� ����
)��)�����,�������(��*�*��������
������*������������������
�����
��,����)��(�����
*��-� ���� .��
� ��)����
���� �
�� *������� -��� ��
��� �,� �
B����� *����
� ���� C��� �,�
 �����������������
���
��/����� ,���!�
���*���� ��-���� ���.�� �����,���5��������
�
��
������
���,� ���� ��)����*���� ����� �������
������
�������*��-���*����*����)���
����
�
��������*����������1��)�����,�)�����(����������5��
�
�����������
�����
���
�������)����,����������.������,��
������
����
��
�����
��,����
����� �)���,��� �����
�� ,��� ��)��(���
�5� � +�� ������������ ���� 
���� ��� ����
����
�
���)����������
����
��� ,�����(��
�
��)���
�����)���
��
����� ����� �������
����*���
��-�
�������)���������
���������
��������,������������������������������������,�����
����
�����)�����-���*�����*�����)��(����������������,���)���
�����)���(��
�
��5��
�
���� '�������� �,� "�*	� % � �
�� ������ !�
�����
�	� � ���)�
���� ��� B������
�� ,����
���.�����������
���
�

0� �����,���������-����
������
�
���
����))����,����,,�����	����.���	��
��)���
���	�
��������,���������
�����)�
��.�������?�

0� ����������,�����,��,,�������
����
����
�����?�
0� ���� ���������� ,��� )���
�����)� ��(��
�
��� )��(����� �������� ���� ���� �,� ����

����-��?�
0� ����
����
���,����������.�������
�
��)��������5�

�
 ����(���7��

Page 2



�
�3��������������)�����
�������
�)��
�.��
����5�
�
������������������)����������)������
����������
�)��
�.��)����
�������,�����������
���
�,���������������5�
�
�
�
�

D� 	
����
������	������	����	�������������

�
�
#������� �����
����:��
�;:;�A��*��
� ��������
��!�
�����
��9,,�����*�������������� ���
���)�
����� ����9�.�����
���
���
�
����,�
��
���,��������
��������
��
�� �
4�������
����
��� �������
���� �������
��!��%��
������������8	� ���� +
������%�����,�"������
��
!��.���8��(�������.�����������)���������
�
�������
�*���������.��
���-�
���
��������
�����
�5�
�
����+
������%�����,�"������
��!��.���8��(�����������(��*���������������
��)����
������
������)���������9�.�����
��,������������������3E��)���������*���������������
������)������))�
��1�3�5�����9�.�����
�������(����������*��
�����8��
������
�������������������(��������������������)�
��
���.��*��
��������
�����
������
9�.�����
��
��*����
,�������
���

�����
�*��������)�������������.��������8	�����
9�.�����
�*�����-���������
���������������������
��
�������������.��
������(��5�+��
*����
��
�������������)��������)����*�����.��)����
���������,�����������
��
��
���
�
������������,�����8��
�����������������
���

�����
�*�����)���,���
���)���
����������9�.�����
5�
�
+
����)�
������B������
��,�������.�����������
����)����
�����
��,�����
9�.�����
=���������
�����
�	�����'����������)�����������%�*�������)��	�'��������
�,��������
=��8��(����	�������-�
�)����
������)�
��.������,����������������
������
�����
������
��,������������������.��
������������������������)�����
�5��
�
+��*���
������������������������=���������,���,���
����
���������
���������
���)�����
�����
��,������.�����
��
(���������
�5������������������������������))���������
�������������
���
������������*�������.���
,�������,��������������(���������*������������
�
�,�
��
����,��������
��������
��
����������
��
����(�������
�����5�
�
 ����(��� 0� ����� ���� ���������� 
���� ����� ���� ���
���� ���� ��)����
���� ����
�������
�����
��������
�����9�.�����
=�� �)������������
�3���)�������A	���(�
��
����)��������,�
��
����,�����9�.�����
	��
�������
��������)��������.��
�������.��
������8��������������5��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



�����������	��
������	
�
�

�������	
����
��	������
�

��������� ����������� �����������������

�
� ������������ �
� �!����

"�#������
�

���������
�

�
�

�� �	�
����
�������
��	�	����
�
$��%���� �&� ���� '����� (���� ��!����� ��� ��������� (������� ���	� ���� �� '�������� ���
'��)�������� ��������� ��������������(������	��&� ���� ��������� ���������������
� �&���
� ���
���������������������������������&��������������*��+���������������(��������*�
�
�

�� 	�	����
�������
����
�
����,��������������(�����-���������������(��������������������������%������������
���'��!���*�,�!�����''���������'�%�����������������
�����'������������������������������
�&����������������������(���������	������������������%��(�������*�
��
�
�

.� ����
�
��� ���
���� �� �	��	�� ��� ��	� �����

� �� ���	� �	�	�	��	�
���������
�
���������� �!"�#$%��!�&'�()#�
�
�*����������'����������������������������/����0�����������������1������$��������&�����
��������2(����������!��������%����&��!������
�%���������������3��������(��4�������
$�	� ���5*� � ���� ���'������ ������� ����� ����������� /����
� ������� ���� ������� �&� ����
��%���
� ��������� ��������� ��� ����� �&� ���� 	����������%���� �&� ���� ������!���!��
6���'������''�����������������������������%����
�
�*���7���!��������������&�����������&����������
�
�������'������ ��� ����������������/��������������� ������������(������������� �����
%�������&�����������&���������&������%�����&���������������*�������������������(���
���'����%	���������������$�	����8*����������!����'������&������������������������
(�������������������%�������������'������'��.��&�����������
�
����9���������������������(�������'���*�
�
�����9��������������������	������&� ������������(������������������%�	�%�����������
���%��������	�����&&���������������	�����������'���*�
�
�*.���:�!������������(����������������%	�$��/�����6������
�1������$����������;&&�����
����,�����&�"�����/��!����*���

Public Document Pack

Page 5



�
�*<���$��6������0����'�����������������������(������'������������$����
�����
��
�*=���������!���������>����'����&��������������������%������&�������������'�	�(��������
����� �&� �������*� ����������� /����0�� ����� (��� �����&���� ��&������ ��� ���� ,��������
������&����������������*��
��

�������!*%+��%�
�
�*����#����(���������'���&�������!������������&&����>����'���
������������/���������'����
�������������������''��'�����������&&����!���������*��
��
�*����,��������������������(����������������������������'���������������*��
�
��
,�����()+()-.�!"�"�*#�
�
.*�������� &�������� �&� &���� ��� ���� :�!�����������;&&����>�� ��'����(���� ����'���� %	� ����
��%)�������%������������������*��
�
/����0�(##%)���1�(..(!).�"!���%��()-�
�
<*���������������/����������������'��'���������������������������
�
����������������������!������������-����������''��'�����������&&����!�����������������
����������������������$�	����5*�
�
����� � � � ����� ��� ���� �'��������� ��� ���� �������� !��%���	� ���� ���� ���������� ��� ����
������������&&��������+�!��%������5���������(���'��'����������!����(��������'����	*�
�
����������������(����������&&�������������!����'����	��������,������������*�
�
��!�� � � ����� ����� �<� ������� ���� ���'���� ������ ���� ��������� ���� ��� �����&����
3����������(����������(���������������������&���������)�������&���������������%��������
�&��������������������*��
�
2���� �%��()-.� ��)%'3.� +%*(.(!)� !)�4$%#$%�� !�� )!#� #$%�%� $�+� 1%%)� �� "�('��%� #!�
*!�&' �4(#$�#$%��!+%�!"��!)+�*#�
�
=*�����������������������������:�!�����������;&&����>����'�������������(���������&&������
����'�����&������������,���	�/����������%������(��������'����	���������������*��
�
=*���� ���� ������ �������� ���� &����(���� ��������� �&���� ������������ ���� :�!�����������
;&&����>����'��������������&�����������&������������'������'��<*���%�!����
�
�����������,���	�/���������%������'������'���.��������.�=���&�����������&���������
%	�&�����������������������(�������'���?��
�
=*.� ������������� &��� ������������������ ����� &���������%���!�� ����������������� �����
����� %	� ����������� /����� ��� ���� �������� �������� ��� ��� $�	� ���5� ��� ������	�
������'��%��*� � ���� ����� �&� ���� ������ ��� ��� �'����� ���� ���������� ������� %	� �����
���%���������'�������(��������������&��������*�

Page 6



�
;�� �������������� �������������%������������	�%�����������������������/���������
����'�����������������������%��������������������������������������'����	*�����
������ %����!�
� ��(�!��
� ����� ����� �'����	� ��� ���� �������� (��� 3����&���� ���� ����
��&&������*� :�� �����&���� ���������� ����������� /����� ��� ����� �� (������� �'����	� ��� ����
������������������������������!����'�������&����'������*���
�
5���� �%��()-.� ��1��!��(##%%3.� +%*(.(!)� !)� 4$�#� &%)�'# � ("� �) � !�-$#� #!� 1%�
(�&!.%+6��
�
�*��������������(���������������������<���������������'����%�&����&������������
����
������ �� ���'������ �%���� ����������� /����0�� �������� (��� �������� ���*� ���� ������
�@'�����������!��(�������&&���������������%�������%������������������%����-����'�
�����������������������*��
�
�*��������������������������������������/������
�
�������������������������������������&��'����	�����������������%���������%	����� ���������&�
"�(
�,7�����1�����$���������
�����������%�����&�������������������������'�������
���%�����&�����/���������A��������#����	��<�
��	�����*�
�
������������%�����'������&���������&&�����&������������&�����'�������&�=�(��-������	��&����
�������<�1�������������
��
7�����(-$#�#!��&&%�'�
�
8*���������������,���	�/��������� ���������� ����''�	� ���(������� ��� ���������������&� ����
1�)����������������&���B�������&���'��������������''����������������,�������������0��
&�������*��������� ������� ��3�������� '���������� ��� �''���� ����� %�� �����!��� %	� ����
���������� �&� ���� 1�)���������� ������ &��� B������� (������ ��� ��	�� �&� ���� ���%����
�����'���&���������&���������&�����,��������/�%C���������>��&�������*��
��
��
��
�
�
�

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



�����������	

������
�

��������	�
���
�������
�

���
����� � 
��������������������

�
� ����������
� ����� �����

!�"���
�
�

��#������

�����
���
�

�
�

$� �

	���
����	���������

�
%�
��&���'�(����#��
������������)���**��������������+����
�,������-�
�

	� ���������	���	������������

�
#�,)��
�.�����
 ���������
�����.����������������*��
��������*��/�������� ������
�
�
��������������.�������� ���,�
����� ���
������������� �+�
��� ����������� ���,�����
�����
.���������.���-�����
���������������
�.����,���-�
�
�

0� ���

�����	�
���	�����������	��	��
�
�����	������
�������

�
(�����,,������.�
��
 ���������
�����.�����������,�������
������)���������������
*��&���-� "�&���� �**����� ���� *�)���� ������
�� ��
��� ���� ��,,������ �������� ����� ����
�����
���+���������,������������.���������������,������������)��.�������-�
�
�

�� �	

��������������

�
(�����,,������ ���
������� ���� +����� ��*���� �+� ���� ����*������� 1�&�
���������2++�����
�**������� ��� ���
����� ���� �������� �������� �+� ����������� 3�,�
� !������ ������� ����
�+������,��������+�����4�
���������5���,�����������
��*������������3�������0����������
���+��������������������
�.������
*��������)���������
��++������������������������
��*���-��
�
"�&����)������&�
��������������,,������.�
���6����������������.��������)�
������
���� �&������� *��
������� ����� ��� ������� ��� �����.�
�� .���� ���� +������
� �+� ����
1�&�
���������2++������#�,)��
� *��������� ��� ���
����� ���� �&������� *��
������ ����
���� ������
���
� 
�)
�6������� ���.�� )�� ���� 1�&�
��������� 2++����� ����� �����������
!��������������+���������,*���.��������������+�����������+��������*������
��*�,������-�
�
#�,)��
���*��

����������������
������������������������)�����������
�,�������������
��,,������ +��� �����,�������� ���� �
 ��� +��� �� ��*���� ��� ���� ����� ,������� ��&������
��
������ �

��
�� /������������,���
�.����������*�)����)����
� +��� ���� ��&�
����������+�
��,*�����
����������������������
�����,*��&�������++���������+�������,*�����
�*����

-��
�
���
%�
��&���'��
�

Public Document Pack

Page 9



�7���(��������+������
��+�����1�&�
���������2++�����������������������!��������������+�������
��,*���.��������*��&�
���
��+�*������*�
�8�7������9��+������������:
�������+���������
)������*���-�
�
�����(�������
���,,�����:
���
��&�����
��������������������������������.������,*�����
�
)�� ��+������ ��� ���� ;�������� �+� 4�.�� "%� ���� 


��� #�����,����� ��������� .���� ����
��6��
�� +��� �� +������� ��*���� ��� ���� ����� ,������� ��� .��
� �+� �,*��&���� ���� ��������

�
��,-��
�
�

Page 10



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
29 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN –  
ANNUAL LETTER AND CURRENT PERFORMANCE 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) produces an annual letter reviewing 

each Local Authority. The letter sets out the number of complaints made to the 
LGO about the Authority, the outcomes, how they have been dealt with and 
response times. The LGO’s latest annual letter on Wirral was published in June 
2009. A copy of the letter is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. This report sets 
out the contents of the letter and the current performance in this financial year on 
response times. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. Members will recall that this Committee, at its meeting on 30 September 2008 

considered the last annual letter of the LGO. This highlighted an average response 
time of 26.8 days, which was a significant improvement on the 2006-07 average of 
112 days. The target response time is 28 days for most complaints, but 14 days for 
complaints relating to schools admission appeals. 

 
2.2. In the annual letter for 2008/09 the LGO notes that performance comparison with 

previous years could be ‘misleading’ due to changes in their working practices, 
specifically the creation of a LGO Advice Team to filter contacts before a full 
investigation is begun.  As a consequence the report mainly focuses on the 2008-
09 performance, rather than comparing directly with 2007/08. 

 
2.3. As detailed in the 2008 report to this Committee, changes to the Council process 

for dealing with LGO contacts were made with the responsibility for liaison with the 
LGO passing from Legal and Member Services to Revenues, Benefits and 
Customer Services. The handover took place on 1 April 2009. 

 
3. RESPONSE TIMES 
 
3.1. After previous performance issues the LGO notes a continued improvement in 

response times in her annual letter with an average of 16.2 days taken to respond 
to enquiries.  

 
3.2. This improved performance has been the result of a clear action plan, regular 

monitoring of performance and sustained effort on the part of many staff across all 
departments. The challenge will be to maintain this improving level of performance 
during the current year.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



4. NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS 
 
4.1. In her letter the LGO states: 

During the year the Advice Team received 218 enquiries about your Council. 150 
complaints were forwarded to the investigative team for investigation. The figure 
was considerably inflated by a large number of complaints about the proposal to 
close a number of libraries in the Council’s area. 

 
5. COMPLAINT OUTCOMES 
 
5.1. The LGO made the following comments about how complaints were resolved. She 

states: 
43 complaints were determined during the year. 6 were found to be outside the 
jurisdiction and in another 9 cases discretion was exercised not to pursue the 
complaints further. In 16 cases there was no evidence of maladministration. 

 
5.2. The LGO also referred to the following specific outcome: 
 
 A report of maladministration causing injustice to the claimant was issued as a 

result of the Council’s failure to comply with a Special Educational Needs and 
Disability Tribunal’s decision to place the complainant’s child in a mainstream 
secondary school. The LGO states: 
Although the Council agreed to my recommendations, I was gravely concerned with 
other aspects of the way that it dealt with my report. These concerns have been 
aired with the Chief Executive and other senior officers and I hope no further 
reference to these issues will be necessary in the next annual review. 

 
5.3. Of the remaining 12 complaints determined in the reporting year, 11 were settled 

locally (action taken by the Council which the LGO considers a satisfactory 
resolution). Details are provided in the LGO’s letter contained in Appendix 1.  

 
5.4. Changes implemented as a result of these local settlements include: 
 

• Amendments to the scheme of delegation to allow compensation payments 
(in cases of proven maladministration) without referral to the LGO, as agreed 
by this Committee on 30 September 2008. 

• Guidance drafted to assist with planning applications, with changes to the 
procedures for preparing reports to the Planning Committee, ensuring that 
the potential impact on neighbours is considered. 

 
6. CHANGES TO THE PROCESS FOR DEALING WITH LGO COMPLAINTS 
 
6.1. Liaison with the LGO is now undertaken by the Revenues, Benefits and Customer 

Services section with further changes implemented to maintain the improving 
response times. Every contact with the LGO is now recorded and measured 
against the required timescale for resolution, reflected in the breakdown provided 
for current performance below. For all corporate complaints reaching a review by 
the LGO there should now be a complete record of the history of each stage in the 
process and what the Council did to offer resolution for the complainant. Such data 
will be invaluable in not only assessing how well the Council deals with complaints 
but also providing evidence to shape future service provision and support best 
practice in dealing with customers. 

 
Page 12



7. CURRENT PERFORMANCE 
 
7.1. For the period 1 April – 31 July 2009 the Council received the following contacts, 

recorded through the Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system: 
 

Type of Contact Dept/Service 
Area 

Request for 
Information 

Follow-up 
Enquiry 

Full 
Investigation 

% Target 
Achieved 

Average 
Days to 
Respond 

Children & Young 
People-Schools 11 3   92.8 12.2 

Children & Young 
People -Youth Service 2     50.0 22.0 
Adult Social Services -

Care Services 10 1 1 33.3 37.7 
Finance-Benefits 1 1   50.0 17.5 

Finance-Revenues 2 1   100.0 8.0 
Regeneration -

Licensing 1     0.0 44.0 
Regeneration - 

Sport and Recreation 1     100.0 1.0 
Technical Services-

Planning 6   1 85.7 8.3 
Technical Services -
Residents Parking 1     100.0 8.0 

 
7.2. LGO contacts are split between preliminary requests for information, full 

investigations and follow-up enquiries (to a preliminary request or full investigation). 
Standard response times are 28 calendar days (14 calendar days for schools 
appeals), unless the LGO sets a specific target date for response. On average 
contacts were responded to within 15.3 calendar days, which maintains the 
improvements made over the previous reporting period. 

 
7.3. The LGO can, if relevant, report a final decision made in the case of individual 

contacts. Of the 16 contacts where a decision has been communicated, seven 
were found to have no evidence of maladministration, seven were resolved with the 
Ombudsman’s discretion (usually due to no/insufficient evidence of injustice found) 
and two were classed as premature applications which needed to be investigated 
through the Council’s complaint procedure first. 

 
7.4. The Council received 43 contacts from the LGO in this period with only two of these 

resulting in new investigations. Both of these investigations have been responded 
to within the timescale, with no evidence of maladministration found in the 
Department of Adult Social Services - Care Services case and a decision pending 
in the Technical Services - Planning case. Of the total contacts responded to, 
71.4% were resolved within the required timescale. 

 
7.5. Of the twelve contacts which were resolved outside the target date, Adult Social 

Services – Care Services accounted for seven of these with an average response 
of 44.6 days per contact. This is in part due to changes in the LGO’s working 
practices (as detailed in paragraph 2.2) and the introduction of the 2009 Adult 
Social Services complaint regulations. As a consequence the LGO is requesting 
more detailed information before deciding how to proceed with an investigation, if at 
all. This increased workload has to be balanced with operational demands, with the 
service committed to liaising fully with the LGO to ensure contacts are dealt with in 
an efficient and proportionate manner. 

 

Page 13



 
8. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1. The manner in which the Council responds to the LGO contributes towards the 

objective to be an excellent council. The continuing improvement in response times 
is a step towards that objective. The ability to effectively review LGO contacts and 
make informed decisions based on this data also supports this objective. 

 
9. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are no implications for individual wards arising directly from this report. 
 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. HUMAN RIGHT IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
13. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
14. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
15. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
16.1. Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter – June 2009. 
 
17. RECOMMENDATION 
 
17.1. That the Committee notes the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
 

IAN COLEMAN 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
FNCE/262/09 

Page 14



 The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) 
provides a free, independent and impartial 
service. We consider complaints about the 
administrative actions of councils and some 
other authorities. We cannot question what a 
council has done simply because someone 
does not agree with it. If we find something 
has gone wrong, such as poor service, 
service failure, delay or bad advice, and that a 
person has suffered as a result, the 
Ombudsmen aim to get it put right by 
recommending a suitable remedy. The LGO 
also uses the findings from investigation 
work to help authorities provide better public 
services through initiatives such as special 
reports, training and annual reviews.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Local Government Ombudsman’s  
Annual Review  

Wirral Metropolitan Borough 
Council 
for the year ended 
31 March 2009 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 

Contents of Annual Review 
 
 
 
 

Section 1: Complaints about Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 2008/09
........................................................................................................................... 3 

Introduction............................................................................................................... 3 

Enquiries and complaints received ........................................................................... 3 

Complaint outcomes ................................................................................................. 3 

Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman...................................................... 5 

Training in complaint handling .................................................................................. 5 

Conclusions .............................................................................................................. 6 

Section 2: LGO developments ........................................................................ 7 

Introduction............................................................................................................... 7 

Council First.............................................................................................................. 7 

Statement of reasons: consultation........................................................................... 7 

Making Experiences Count (MEC)............................................................................ 7 

Training in complaint handling .................................................................................. 7 

Adult Social Care Self-funding .................................................................................. 8 

Internal schools management................................................................................... 8 

Further developments............................................................................................... 8 

Appendix 1: Notes to assist interpretation of the statistics 2008/09 ........... 9 

Appendix 2: Local authority report 2008/09

Page 16



 

 3 

Section 1: Complaints about Wirral Metropolitan 
Borough Council 2008/09 

Introduction 

This annual review provides a summary of the complaints we have dealt with about Wirral 
Metropolitan Borough Council.  
 
I hope that the review will be a useful addition to other information your authority holds on how 
people experience or perceive your services.  
 
Two appendices form an integral part of this review: statistical data for 2008/09 and a note to help 
the interpretation of the statistics. 
 
Changes to our way of working and statistics 
 
A change in the way we operate means that the statistics about complaints received in 2008/09 are 
not directly comparable with those from 2007/08. Since 1 April 2008 the new LGO Advice Team 
has been the single point of contact for all enquiries and new complaints. The number of telephone 
calls to our service has increased significantly since then to more than 3,000 a month. Our 
advisers now provide comprehensive information and advice to people who telephone, write or e-
mail. It enables citizens to make informed decisions about whether to put their complaint to us.  
 
This means that direct comparisons with some previous year statistics are difficult and could be 
misleading. So this annual review focuses mainly on the 2008/09 statistics without drawing those 
comparisons.  

Enquiries and complaints received 

During the year the Advice Team received a total of 218 enquiries about your Council.  150 
complaints were forwarded to the investigative team for investigation. This figure was considerably 
inflated by a large number of complaints about the proposal to close a number of libraries in the 
Council's area. 

Complaint outcomes 

43 complaints were determined during the year.  Six were found to be outside jurisdiction and in 
another 9 cases discretion was exercised not to pursue the complaints further.  In 16 cases there 
was no evidence of maladministration. 
 

Reports  

I issued one report about maladministration causing injustice to the complainant.  This was about a 
complaint that the Council had not complied with the decision of a Special Educational Needs and 
Disability Tribunal that the complainant’s child should attend a mainstream secondary school in the 
Council's area.  This arose because of a dispute between the Council and the complainant about 
whether the family’s main residence was in the Council's area or elsewhere.  As a result the child 
was deprived of full-time education from October 2005 to November 2006. 
 
The Council agreed to remedy the injustice by reserving until the end of year 11 a sum equivalent 
to the cost of the year’s education that the child had missed, when the money would be used to 
fund any additional educational provision that the school and an educational psychologist 

Page 17



 

 4 

recommended as being beneficial.  The Council also agreed to pay the complainant £1000 in 
recognition of the anxiety, stress, time and trouble that had been caused by the maladministration, 
together with a payment of £655 to reimburse the cost of private tuition.   
 
Although the Council agreed to my recommendations, I was gravely concerned about other 
aspects of the way that it dealt with my report.  Those concerns have been aired with the Chief 
Executive and other senior officers and I hope that no further reference to the issues will be 
necessary in the next Annual Review. 
 

Local settlements 

 

We will often discontinue enquires into a complaint when a council takes or agrees to take action 
that we consider to be a satisfactory response – we call these local settlements. In 2008/09, 27.4% 
of all complaints the Ombudsmen decided and which were within our jurisdiction were local 
settlements. Of the complaints we decided against your authority, 11 were locally settled and I will 
mention these below.  
 
Adult care services 
 
Two complaints resulted in settlements in this category.  The first was a complaint about a failure 
to make proper arrangements for the transfer of the complainant’s disabled child from school to 
adult care; failure to make direct payments properly; and failure to fund respite care properly.  This 
was remedied by a payment of £5000 compensation.  This complaint had been referred to me by 
the Council itself because its constitution does not allow for compensation to be paid without my 
approval. 
 
The other matter concerned the support given to the complainant's elderly relative who had gone 
into a private residential home.  In addition to compensation already paid to the complainant before 
the complaint was made to me, the Council offered to contact the relative to see if they wished to 
have assistance from the Council's welfare rights staff. 
 
Children and family services 
 
One complaint was settled under this heading.  This was about a long delay in organising the 
Council's internal complaints procedure which was settled by an apology and £500 compensation 
for the complainant's time and trouble.  The Council initially failed to recognise how poor its 
handling of this complaint had been and this caused some delay in resolving the complaint. 
 
Land 
 
In this case the Council made a mistake about which path it intended to close.  Once the Council 
recognised its mistake it remedied the matter by withdrawing the closure plan. 
 
Planning applications 
 
Two complaints were settled under this heading.  The first complaint was about the failure by the 
Council to respond to an application for the erection of a telephone mast within the required time 
scale, as a result of which the Council was unable to prevent the telecommunications company 
going ahead. The Council agreed to ask the District Valuer to estimate that the difference in the 
value of the complainant’s home with and without the mast.  In addition the Council agreed to pay 
the complainant £250 for their time and trouble in pursuing the complaint. 
 
The other complaint was about a number of failings in the way that a planning application was 
considered.  The Council agreed to ask the District Valuer to calculate the loss of value to the 

Page 18



 

 5 

complainant’s property as a result of the granting of the permission.  The Council took action to 
draft guidance on separation distances and the height of land, as well as amending procedures to 
ensure that reports to the planning committee stressed the potential impact on neighbours.  
Training for planning committee members was also to be examined.  In addition the Council 
agreed to pay £250 compensation to the complainant for their time and trouble in complaining. 
 
School admissions 
 
Three complaints about school admissions matters were settled.  The first concerned some 
confusion over the complainant's right of appeal against the refusal of a place at their preferred 
school.   
 
The other two complaints concerned the appeal process for a selective school in the Council's 
area, where the Appeal Panel was given incomplete information as a result of which it did not 
properly consider the fairness of the selection process. 
 
All three complaints were settled by the offer of fresh appeal hearings. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
The Council settled a complaint about a failure over a prolonged period to provide information 
requested by the complainant in connection with an earlier complaint.  The Council provided the 
information and offered £50 compensation. 

Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman 

My office made enquiries of the Council on 103 occasions (again this figure is greatly inflated by 
the number of complaints about library provision).  The average number of days taken to respond 
was 16.2, as against 26.3 days in 2007/08 and 111.9 days in 2006/07. 

Training in complaint handling 

Part of our role is to provide advice and guidance about good administrative practice. We offer 
training courses for all levels of local authority staff in complaints handling and investigation. All 
courses are presented by experienced investigators. They give participants the opportunity to 
practise the skills needed to deal with complaints positively and efficiently. We can also provide 
customised courses to help authorities to deal with particular issues and occasional open courses 
for individuals from different authorities. 

I have enclosed some information on the full range of courses available together with contact 
details for enquiries and bookings.  

Page 19



 

 6 

 

Conclusions  

I welcome this opportunity to give you my reflections about the complaints my office has dealt with 
over the past year. I hope that you find the information and assessment provided useful when 
seeking improvements to your Council’s services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mrs A Seex         June 2009 
Local Government Ombudsman 
Beverley House 
17 Shipton Road 
YORK 
YO30 5FZ 
 

Page 20



 

 7 

Section 2: LGO developments 

Introduction 

This annual review also provides an opportunity to bring councils up to date on developments – 
current and proposed – in the LGO and to seek feedback. It includes our proposal to introduce a 
‘statement of reasons’ for Ombudsmen decisions.  

Council First 

From 1 April 2009, the LGO has considered complaints only where the council’s own complaints 
procedure has been completed. Local authorities have been informed of these new arrangements, 
including some notable exceptions. We will carefully monitor the impact of this change during the 
course of the year.  

Statement of reasons: consultation 

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 made provision for the LGO to 
publish statements of reasons relating to the individual decisions of an Ombudsman following the 
investigation of a complaint. The Ombudsmen are now consulting local government on their 
proposal to use statements of reasons. The proposal is that these will comprise a short summary 
(about one page of A4) of the complaint, the investigation, the findings and the recommended 
remedy. The statement, naming the council but not the complainant, would usually be published on 
our website.  
 
We plan to consult local authorities on the detail of these statements with a view to implementing 
them from October 2009.  

Making Experiences Count (MEC) 

The new formal, one stage complaint handling arrangement for adult social care was also 
introduced from 1 April 2009. The LGO is looking to ensure that this formal stage is observed by 
complainants before the Ombudsmen will consider any such complaint, although some may be 
treated as exceptions under the Council First approach. The LGO also recognises that during the 
transition from the existing scheme to the new scheme there is going to be a mixed approach to 
considering complaints as some may have originated before 1 April 2009. The LGO will endeavour 
to provide support, as necessary, through dedicated events for complaints-handling staff in adult 
social care departments.  

Training in complaint handling 

Effective Complaint Handling in Adult Social Care is the latest addition to our range of training 
courses for local authority staff. This adds to the generic Good Complaint Handling (identifying and 
processing complaints) and Effective Complaint Handling (investigation and resolution), and 
courses for social care staff at both of these levels. Demand for our training in complaint handling 
remains high. A total of 129 courses were delivered in 2008/09. Feedback from participants shows 
that they find it stimulating, challenging and beneficial in their work in dealing with complaints.  

Page 21



 

 8 

Adult Social Care Self-funding 

The Health Bill 2009 proposes for the LGO to extend its jurisdiction to cover an independent 
complaints-handling role in respect of self-funded adult social care. The new service will 
commence in 2010.  

Internal schools management 

The Apprenticeship, Skills, Children and Learning Bill (ASCL) 2009 proposes making the LGO the 
host for a new independent complaints-handling function for schools. In essence, we would 
consider the complaint after the governing body of the school had considered it. Subject to 
legislation, the new service would be introduced, in pilot form, probably in September 2010.  

Further developments 

I hope this information gives you an insight into the major changes happening within the LGO, 
many of which will have a direct impact on your local authority. We will keep you up to date through 
LGO Link as each development progresses but if there is anything you wish to discuss in the 
meantime please let me know.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mrs A Seex         June 2009 
Local Government Ombudsman 
Beverley House 
17 Shipton Road 
YORK 
YO30 5FZ 

Page 22



 

 9 

Appendix 1: Notes to assist interpretation of the 
statistics 2008/09 
 

Introduction 
 

This year, the annual review only shows 2008/09 figures for enquiries and complaints received, 
and for decisions taken. This is because the change in the way we operate (explained in the 
introduction to the review) means that these statistics are not directly comparable with statistics 
from previous years. 
 
 
Table 1.  LGO Advice Team: Enquiries and complaints received 
 
This information shows the number of enquiries and complaints received by the LGO, broken down 
by service area and in total. It also shows how these were dealt with, as follows. 
 
Formal/informal prematures: The LGO does not normally consider a complaint unless a council 
has first had an opportunity to deal with that complaint itself. So if someone complains to the LGO 
without having taken the matter up with a council, the LGO will usually refer it back to the council 
as a ‘premature complaint’ to see if the council can itself resolve the matter. These are ‘formal 
premature complaints’. We now also include ‘informal’ premature complaints here, where advice is 
given to the complainant making an enquiry that their complaint is premature. The total of 
premature complaints shown in this line does not include the number of resubmitted premature 
complaints (see below). 
 
Advice given: These are enquiries where the LGO Advice Team has given advice on why the 
Ombudsman would not be able to consider the complaint, other than the complaint being 
premature. For example, the complaint may clearly be outside the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. It 
also includes cases where the complainant has not given enough information for clear advice to be 
given, but they have, in any case, decided not to pursue the complaint. 
 
Forwarded to the investigative team (resubmitted prematures):  These are cases where there 
was either a formal premature decision, or the complainant was given informal advice that their 
case was premature, and the complainant has resubmitted their complaint to the Ombudsman after 
it has been put to the council. These figures need to be added to the numbers for formal/informal 
premature complaints (see above) to get the full total number of premature complaints. They also 
needed to be added to the ‘forwarded to the investigative team (new)’ to get the total number of 
forwarded complaints. 
 
Forwarded to the investigative team (new): These are the complaints that have been forwarded 
from the LGO Advice Team to the Investigative Team for further consideration. The figures may 
include some complaints that the Investigative Team has received but where we have not yet 
contacted the council.  

Page 23



 

 10 

Table 2.  Investigative Team: Decisions 
 
This information records the number of decisions made by the LGO Investigative Team, broken 
down by outcome, within the period given. This number will not be the same as the number of 
complaints forwarded from the LGO Advice Team because some complaints decided in 
2008/09 will already have been in hand at the beginning of the year, and some forwarded to the 
Investigative Team during 2008/09 will still be in hand at the end of the year. Below we set out a 
key explaining the outcome categories. 
 
MI reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding 
maladministration causing injustice.  
 
LS (local settlements): decisions by letter discontinuing our investigation because action has been 
agreed by the authority and accepted by the Ombudsman as a satisfactory outcome for the 
complainant. 
 
M reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding 
maladministration but causing no injustice to the complainant.  
 
NM reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding no 
maladministration by the council. 
 
No mal: decisions by letter discontinuing an investigation because we have found no, or 
insufficient, evidence of maladministration. 
 
Omb disc: decisions by letter discontinuing an investigation in which we have exercised the 
Ombudsman’s general discretion not to pursue the complaint. This can be for a variety of reasons, 
but the most common is that we have found no or insufficient injustice to warrant pursuing the 
matter further.   
 
Outside jurisdiction: these are cases which were outside the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. 
 
Table 3.  Response times 
 
These figures record the average time the council takes to respond to our first enquiries on a 
complaint. We measure this in calendar days from the date we send our letter/fax/email to the date 
that we receive a substantive response from the council. The council’s figures may differ 
somewhat, since they are likely to be recorded from the date the council receives our letter until the 
despatch of its response.   
 
Table 4.  Average local authority response times 2008/09 
 
This table gives comparative figures for average response times by authorities in England, by type 
of authority, within three time bands.  

Page 24



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 R
e
p

o
rt

 -
 W

ir
ra

l 
M

B
C

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 -

  
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
0
9

L
G

O
 A

d
v
ic

e
 T

e
a

m

2 4 2 8

1
6

4 2 0 2 8

0 2 1 7

1
0

3 2 0 0 5

0 0 1 0 1

3 1 0 2 6

7 2 2 2

1
3

4 1 1 1 7

1
0

2
1 4

1
1

7

1
5

2

3
3

3
5

1
1

1
3

9

2
1

8
T

o
ta

l

F
o

rw
a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

v
e
 t

e
a
m

(n
e
w

)

F
o

rw
a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

v
e
 t

e
a
m

(r
e
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 p

re
m

a
tu

re
s
)

A
d

v
ic

e
 g

iv
e
n

F
o

rm
a
l/
in

fo
rm

a
l 
p

re
m

a
tu

re
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts

T
o

ta
l

O
th

e
r

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
n

d
h

ig
h

w
a
y
s

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
b

u
il

d
in

g
c
o

n
tr

o
l

P
u

b
li

c
F

in
a
n

c
e

in
c
. 

L
o

c
a
l

T
a
x
a
ti

o
n

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
H

o
u

s
in

g
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

C
h

il
d

re
n

a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
y

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d

u
lt

 c
a
re

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 a

n
d

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

In
v
e

s
ti

g
a

ti
v
e

 T
e

a
m

T
o

ta
l

O
u

ts
id

e
ju

ri
s
d

ic
ti

o
n

O
m

b
 d

is
c

N
o

 m
a
l

N
M

 r
e
p

s
M

 r
e
p

s
L

S
M

I 
re

p
s

D
e
c
is

io
n

s

1
1

1
0

0
1
6

9
6

4
3

0
1
/0

4
/2

0
0
8
 /
 3

1
/0

3
/2

0
0
9

A
vg

 n
o

. 
o

f 
d

ay
s

to
 r

e
s

p
o

n
d

N
o

. 
o
f 

F
ir

s
t

 E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s

F
IR

S
T

 E
N

Q
U

IR
IE

S
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

im
e

s

0
1
/0

4
/2

0
0
8
 /
 3

1
/0

3
/2

0
0
9

1
0
3

1
6
.2

2
0
0
7
 /
 2

0
0
8

3
3

2
6
.3

2
0
0
6
 /
 2

0
0
7

5
2

1
1
1
.9

 
  
  
  
  
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 0

1
/0

4
/2

0
0
8
 t
o
 3

1
/0

3
/2

0
0
9
  

 

T
y
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 

<
=
 2

8
 d

a
y
s
 

%
 

2
9
 -
 3

5
 d

a
y
s
 

%
 

>
 =

 3
6
 d

a
y
s
 

%
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
co

u
n
ci

ls
  

6
0
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

U
n
ita

ry
 a

u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
 

5
6
 

3
5
 

9
 

M
e
tr
o
p
o
lit

a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
 

6
7
 

1
9
 

1
4
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 c
o
u
n
ci

ls
  

6
2
 

3
2
 

6
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s 

 
5
8
 

2
7
 

1
5
 

N
a
tio

n
a
l p

a
rk

 a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

0
 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	

������
��������������

�	
��������	�������	���������������������	�
����	���������
��	�����	��	��
���������
��

���������	
����
�
���

�
����

���������������������
�
������������������������������
��������������
�
��
����
�� ��� ���� ������ �����

�
�� �
�	��
�
� ��� ������
�����
�������
�
������������
�������
�����	
���������
�
� � �!�"�#$%����&&'()�
�
���� � !"� #�$%#&� %�&'!��"� & �� (!�)!�*"� %(� & �� �%+,'� �%-�#�.��&� 	./�)".,�� 0��	1�

(%''%2!�*�,�+%.$',!�&�/3�& ��%2��#�%(�4����2),'�"��'%"���5��+ 2%%)�2!& �#�*,#)�&%�
���6���76447�� ,�)� & �� *#,�&� %(� $',��!�*� $�#.!""!%�� (%#� & �� �#�+&!%�� %(� 88� �%��
)2�''!�*"�%��',�)�,)9,+��&�&%�:;��&,& ,.��%,)�!���%+&%#�.��

�
���� �"� ,� #�"�'&� %(�  !"� !�-�"&!*,&!%��� & �� ��	� 2,"� ",&!"(!�)� & ,&� & �#��  ,"� /����

.,',).!�!"&#,&!%��+,�"!�*�& ��+%.$',!�,�&�,��!�9�"&!+��,�)�,"<�)�& ���%+,'���& %#!&3�
&%�.,<��,�'%+,'�"�&&'�.��&�2!& �& ��+%.$',!�,�&�&%�+%.$��",&��(%#�& ,&�!�9�"&!+�����

�
��8� ��� !"�(!�,'�#�"$%�"��&%�& ��+%.$',!�,�&��& ����	�#,!"�)�,���./�#�%(�+%�+�#�"�%-�#�

& �� 2,3� & �� $',��!�*� ,$$'!+,&!%�� 2,"� )�&�#.!��)�� ��� ,))!&!%��� & �� ��	�  ,)� "%.��
+%�+�#�"� ,#!"!�*� (#%.� & �� "�/"�=���&� !�&�#-!�2"�  �')� 2!& � 
�./�#"� (#%.� & ��
�',��!�*��%..!&&���� � � �"�� ��	� +%�+�#�"�� 2 !+ � 2!''� /�� %(� !�&�#�"&� &%�
�./�#"�
,�)�	((!+�#"�,'!<���,#��)�&,!'�)�!��& !"�#�$%#&����

�
��;� 
�./�#"� ,#�� ,"<�)� &%� �%&�� & �� #�$%#&� ,�)� & �� %/"�#-,&!%�"� %(� & �� ��	� ,�)�

#�+%..��)� &%��%��+!'� & ,&�
�./�#"�%(� & ���',��!�*��%..!&&���,&&��)�,�%���),3�
��(#�" �#6&#,!�!�*��%#<" %$�!��& ��/,"!+"�%(��',��!�*�>���-�'%$.��&��%�&#%'��

�
�
� � �'"*+(,��-�
�
���� � �#�� !"� ,� )�&,!'�)� $',��!�*�  !"&%#3� #�',&!�*� &%� & �� "!&�� !�� =��"&!%��� ),&!�*� /,+<� &%�

���;�� � � �� "!&�� '!�"� 2!& !�� & �� �'�,�%#� �%,)� ��-�'%$.��&� 5#!�(� ,#�,� ,�)� 2,"�
& �#�(%#��"�/9�+&�&%�)��"!&3�+%�"&#,!�&"�,�)�#�"&#!+&!%�"�#�',&!�*�&%�,++�""������%�&'!���
$',��!�*�,$$'!+,&!%��2,"�"�/.!&&�)�!�����;�(%#�& ���#�+&!%��%(�84�)2�''!�*"�/�&�2,"�
"�/"�=���&'3�2!& )#,2��/3�& ��,$$'!+,�&�����#�-!"�)�%�&'!���$',��!�*�,$$'!+,&!%��2,"�
"�/.!&&�)�!���%-�./�#����;�,�)�(%''%2!�*�,�"!&��-!"!&�/3�
�./�#"�!���,��,#3����4��
& ,&�,$$'!+,&!%��2,"�"�/"�=���&'3�,$$#%-�)���� !"�+%�"��&�$#%-!)�)�(%#�88�)2�''!�*"�
2!& � ,++�""� %((� �&,& ,.� �%,)�� � �� (�#& �#� %�&'!��� ,$$'!+,&!%�� 2,"� "�/.!&&�)� (%#�
)�&�#.!�,&!%��!��	+&%/�#����4�(%#�8��)2�''!�*"�/�&�2,"�2!& )#,2��/3�& ��,$$'!+,�&��
%��& ��,)-!+��%(�%((!+�#"�)���&%�$#%/'�."�2!& �,++�""�,##,�*�.��&"��

�
���� ��� 
,#+ � ���7�� ,� (�''� $',��!�*� ,$$'!+,&!%�� 2,"� "�/.!&&�)� /3� ��� 5'%%#� 0�!'."'%21�

�%.�"� (%#� & �� �#�+&!%�� %(� 88� )2�''!�*"� ,�)� ,""%+!,&�)� 2%#<"�� ,�)� & !"� !"� & ��
,$$'!+,&!%�� 2 !+ � 2,"� & �� "�/9�+&� %(� & �� +%.$',!�&�� � � �� ,$$'!+,&!%�� ��./�#� 2,"�
���6���76447��� � � �� ,$$'!+,&!%�� 2,"� .,)�� -,'!)� %�� �8� 
,#+ �� ���7� ,�)� & ��
#�=�!"!&���%&!(!+,&!%�"�,�)�"!&���%&!+��$%"&�)��2!& �& ��',"&�),&��(%#�+%..��&�/�!�*�;�

,3�����7�� �� �#��2�#��?�%/9�+&!%�"�#�+�!-�)�0,'& %�* �,&� & ��&!.�� & ��,$$'!+,&!%��
2,"� /�!�*� +%�"!)�#�)� ,�)�  �,#)� /3� �',��!�*��%..!&&���� & �� +%.$',!�,�&�  !."�'(�
)!)��%&�%/9�+&�&%�& ��$#%$%",'"1��

�
��8� �',��!�*��%..!&&���+%�"!)�#�)�& ��,$$'!+,&!%��,&�& �!#�.��&!�*�%�������������7�����

+%$3�%(�& ��+%..!&&���#�$%#&�!"�,$$��)�)�(%#�
�./�#"�!�(%#.,&!%������"!&��-!"!&�2,"�
�%&�  �')� %�� & !"� %++,"!%�� ,"�
�./�#"�+%�"!)�#�)� & �3� +%�')�"�((!+!��&'3� #�+,''� & ��
"!&�� (#%.� & �!#� -!"!&� !�� �,��,#3� ���4�� �
�./�#"� ,'"%� +%�"!)�#�)� & �� �@&,�&� %�&'!���
+%�"��&� (%#� 88� )2�''!�*"� &%� /�� ,� .,&�#!,'� +%�"!)�#,&!%�� 2 ��� )�&�#.!�!�*� & !"�
$',��!�*� ,$$'!+,&!%��� � � �� ,$$'!+,&!%�� 2,"� & �#�(%#�� ,$$#%-�)� /3� & �� �',��!�*�
�%..!&&�����

�
�

Agenda Item 4

Page 27



����������	

������
��������������

�	
��������	�������	���������������������	�
����	���������
��	�����	��	��
���������
��

�
. � �/���,&01'$�#�#,�#/������
�
8��� �%''%2!�*� +%..��+�.��&� %(� )�-�'%$.��&�� & �� �%��+!'� #�+�!-�)� ,� +%.$',!�&� (#%.�

& �� %2��#� %(� 4����2),'�"��'%"���5��+ 2%%)� !���%-�./�#�� ���7�2 %"�� $#%$�#&3�
/,+<"� %�&%� & �� )�-�'%$.��&� "!&��� � ��� 2,"� -�#3� +%�+�#��)� ,/%�&�  %2� +'%"�� & ��
)�-�'%$.��&� 2,"� /�!�*� /�!'&� &%�  !"� $#%$�#&3�� � � �� +%.$',!�&� 2,"� '%**�)� 2!& �
�',��!�*� ��(%#+�.��&� &%� !�-�"&!*,&�� 0��(� �%A� ��;86�71� >� ,''%+,&�)� &%� ,��
!�-�"&!*,&!�*�%((!+�#�����"!&��-!"!&�2,"�+,##!�)�%�&�%���:��%-�./�#�����7�,�)�,*,!��%��
:���+�./�#�����7��

�
8���� 	�� �:� 
,#+ �� ���?� %((!+�#"� 2#%&�� &%� & �� +%.$',!�,�&� &%� ,)-!"��  !.� & ,&� & ��

)�-�'%$.��&� ,)�/����+ �+<�)�%��"!&��/3�,���./�#�%(�%((!+�#"�2 %� ,)�+%�(!#.�)�
& ,&� & ��)�-�'%$.��&� ,)� !�� (,+&�/����/�!'&� !��,++%#),�+��2!& � & ��,$$#%-�)�$',�"�
,�)�& ��(!�!" �)�('%%#�'�-�'"�,"�"�/.!&&�)���� ��+%.$',!�,�&� ,)��@$#�""�)�+%�+�#��
& ,&� & ��)�-�'%$.��&�2,"� '!<�'3� &%��((�+&� & ��-,'���%(� !"�$#%$�#&3�/�&�%((!+�#"�,'"%�
,)-!"�)� & �� +%.$',!�,�&� & ,&� & �� )�-,'�,&!%�� %(� $#%$�#&3� $#!+�"� 2,"� �%&� .,&�#!,'�
2 ���+%�"!)�#!�*�$',��!�*�,$$'!+,&!%�"�,�)�& �#�(%#���+%�')��%&� ,-��/����$#%$�#'3�
+%�"!)�#�)� 2 ��� & �� ����2�#�� )�&�#.!�!�*� & �� $',��!�*� ,$$'!+,&!%��� � �&� !"� ,&� & !"�
$%!�&� & ,&� & �� +%.$',!�,�&� )�+!)�)� &%� $�#"���  !"� +%.$',!�&� 2!& � & �� �%+,'�
�%-�#�.��&�	./�)".,���

�
�
2 � �,"'1��,%�(�&��#��&3�-4&'����%�4#$+'#$,��
�
;��� ��� ������ ���?� & �� �%��+!'� "��&� ,� "�/"&,�&!-�� #�"$%�"�� -!,� ��*,'� ��#-!+�"� &%� & ��

�%+,'��%-�#�.��&�	./�)".,��2!& �#�*,#)�&%�& ��$%!�&"�& ��+%.$',!�,�&� ,)�.,)��
!�� !"�+%.$',!�&����%$!�"�%(�& ��#�'�-,�&�+%..!&&���#�$%#&�,�)�"+,'�)�$',��%(�& ��"!&��
>� )�-�'%$.��&�� !�+'�)!�*� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"� $#%$�#&3� 2�#�� !�+'�)�)� 2!& � & !"�
#�"$%�"��� � �&�2,"�,&� & !"�$%!�&� & ,&� !&�2,"�#�$%#&�)�&%� & ��	./�)".,�B"��%.!�,&�)�
��-�"&!*,&%#� & ,&� & �� )�-�'%$.��&�2,"� 87�.�&#�"� (#%.� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"� $#%$�#&3���
� !"� 2,"� !�+%##�+&�� � � �� ,+&�,'� )!"&,�+�� 2,"� ,� '!&&'�� %-�#� �:� .�&#�"�� � � !'"&�
"�$,#,&!%�� )!"&,�+�"� 2�#�� �%&� #�+%#)�)� %�� & �� �%..!&&��� ��$%#&�� !&� '�)� &%� "%.��
+%�(�"!%��2!& �& ����-�"&!*,&%#�,&�& ��	./�)".,�B"�%((!+��2 %�,"<�)�(%#�+',#!(!+,&!%��
%�� & �� ,+&�,'� )!"&,�+��� � �',#!(!+,&!%�� %(� & �� +%##�+&� )!"&,�+�� 2,"� $#%-!)�)� &%� & ��
	./�)".,���

�
;��� � �� ��-�"&!*,&%#� "�/"�=���&'3� )�+!)�)� & ,&�  �� 2,�&�)� &%� !�&�#-!�2� & �� %((!+�#"�

!�-%'-�)� 2!& � & �� ,$$'!+,&!%�� ,�)� ,� ��./�#� %(� 
�./�#"� 2 %� 2�#�� ,&� �',��!�*�
�%..!&&���%�������������7�,�)�&%�!�"$�+&�,''�%(�& ��#�'�-,�&�(!'�"�#�',&!�*�&%�& !"�"!&��
,�)� & �� +%.$',!�&� .,)��� � � �� ��-�"&!*,&%#� #�=��"&�)� &%� "��� & �� $',��!�*� +,"��
%((!+�#��& ��$',��!�*���(%#+�.��&�%((!+�#��& ��� ,!#�%(��',��!�*��& ��-!+�C+ ,!#�,�)�8�
(�#& �#�
�./�#"�2 %�2�#��,&� & ���',��!�*��%..!&&���%�������������7�� ����"$%<��
2!& � & �� %((!+�#"� ,�)� & �� & ��� � ,!#� %(� �',��!�*�� �% �� �%+<�#� &%*�& �#� 2!& ��
�%��+!''%#"��')�#&%��>�����!�*"�%��;��$#!'�����:��

�
�

5 � �/���&3�-4&'�64���"$4$,��
�
4��� �%''%2!�*�& �� !�-�"&!*,&!%��� & ��	./�)".,��#,!"�)�"%.��+%�+�#�"� !�� !"�#�"$%�"��

&%� & �� +%.$',!�&� & ,&� & %"�� 
�./�#"� %(� �',��!�*� �%..!&&���  �� "$%<�� &%� )!)� �%&�
,$$�,#�&%�/��D(�''3�,2,#��%(�& ��*�!),�+��%��"�$,#,&!%��)!"&,�+�"�E�����%�&'!��)�& ��
(%''%2!�*A�

�
�� �%.��.�./�#"�%(�& ���',��!�*��%..!&&���2�#���%&�(�''3�,2,#��%(�& ��*�!),�+��

%�� "�$,#,&!%�� )!"&,�+�"��� 	���.�./�#� &%')�.�� 0���� ������	
���
1� & ,&�  �� 2,"�
��,2,#�� & ,&� & �� ,+&�,'� )!"&,�+�� /�&2���� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"�  %.�� ,�)� & ��
$#%$�#&3� &%� & �� #�,#�2%�')�/���:�.�&#�"F� �� & %�* &� & ,&�2 ,&� !"�,�� G���������
�	��������0$%'!+3���;1�!"�,�.,&&�#�(%#�& ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#�&%�)�+!)����

�
�� ��%& �#� ",!)� & ,&� )!"&,�+�� ��-�#� G+,.�� !�� &%� !&B� /�+,�"�� �%/%)3�  ,)� %/9�+&�)�

,/%�&� !&��� ��� ,'"%� & %�* &� & ,&� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"�  %�"�� 2,"� 8� .�&#�"� (�#& �#�

Page 28



����������	

������
��������������

�	
��������	�������	���������������������	�
����	���������
��	�����	��	��
���������
8�

,2,3�& ,��& ���%#.,'��;�#�=�!#�)��,'& %�* � ��+%##�+&�)�& !"�&%��4�.�&#�"������
2%�')� %�'3� +%�"!)�#� )!"&,�+�� ,"� ,�� !""��� !(� !&�  ,)� /���� #,!"�)� !�� & �� #�$%#&F�

�./�#"�,#��*�!)�)�,� '%&�/3�& ��+,"��%((!+�#B"�#�$%#&�,�)�2 ,&� ��",3"�%��& ��
�-��!�*F�2 ,&�!"�,��,)�=�,&��)!"&,�+��!"�(%#�& ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#�&%�)�&�#.!��F�

�
�� 	���.�./�#�",!)� & ,&� !(� & ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#� !"�%(� & ��-!�2�& ,&� & ��#�',&!%�" !$�

/�&2���� & �� $#%$%"�)� )�-�'%$.��&� ,�)� �@!"&!�*�  %.�"� !"� ,++�$&,/'��� !�� & ��
,/"��+��%(�,�3�#�"!)��&�=��#3!�*�!&�� ��,""�.�"�& ,&�& ��#�',&!%�" !$� ,"�/����
,++�$&�)�/3�& ��#�"!)��&"����!"&,�+��2,"��%&�,��!""���(%#� !.�/�+,�"��& �#�� ,)�
/�����%�%/9�+&!%��,�)��%& !�*�2,"�#,!"�)�/3�& ��%((!+�#������,++�$&"�& ,&� ��2,"�
��,2,#��& ,&�& ��,+&�,'�"�$,#,&!%��)!"&,�+�� �#��2,"��:�.�&#�"F� ,)�& !"�/����
#,!"�)�/3�2,3�%(�,��%/9�+&!%��� (%#��@,.$'��� ��2%�')� ,-�� '%%<�)�,&�2 �& �#�!&�
2,"�$%""!/'�� &%� !�+#�,"�� & !"� &%� ��.�&#�"F� !&�2,"�,'"%� !"�-!�2� & ,&�2 ,&� !"�,��
,)�=�,&��)!"&,�+��!"�(%#�& ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#�&%�)�+!)����

�
4���� �,-!�*�'%%<�)�,&�& ��	((!+�#B"�#�$%#&�&%��',��!�*��%..!&&����& ��	./�)".,���%&�)�

& ,&� & ��"�$,#,&!%��)!"&,�+�"�,#���	��"$�+!(!�)�/�&� & ,&� !&�)%�"�"&,&�� 0,�)� ��=�%&��
(#%.�& ��#�$%#&1�& ,&A�D����������������
�����
���	���
��
��������
�������������	���
���� ���� �����	���� ������ 
���	
������� �	��� 
�
�
�� ��� ����
��	��� �	�������� ����
�
��	�	��� ��� ����	��� ������� ���� �� 
������� �� �����
� ��� ������ ��������
�� ��������
�
����� ���� ��	
����� ������E� � � ��(%#&��,&�'3�� .,&&�#"� 2�#�� �%&�  �'$�)� /3� & ��
�%��+!'B"� %#!*!�,'� #�"$%�"�� &%� & �� 	./�)".,�� !�� ����� ���?� !�� 2 !+ � " �� 2,"�
!�!&!,''3� !�(%#.�)� & ��"�$,#,&!%��)!"&,�+��2,"�87�.�&#�"�2 ��� !�� (,+&� !&�2,"�,� '!&&'��
%-�#� �:.�&#�"�� ,'& %�* � & �� ��-�"&!*,&%#� %�� /� ,'(� %(� & ��	./�").,��  ,"� �%&�)�
& ,&�& !"�!�+%##�+&�.�,"�#�.��&�2,"��%&�#�(�##�)�&%�!��& ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#B"�#�$%#&�&%�
�',��!�*� �%..!&&��� ,�)� & �#�(%#�� 2%�')� �%&�  ,-�� !�('���+�)� ,�3� 
�./�#B"�
)�+!"!%���

�
4�8� � ��	./�)".,�B"� ��-�"&!*,&%#�,'"%��@$#�""�)� !"�+%�+�#�� & ,&�
�./�#"�+%�"!)�#�

& ,&� !&� !"�%�'3�& ��#%'��%(�& ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#�&%�+%�"!)�#�2 ,&�,��,)�=�,&��)!"&,�+��
��)�#�0�%'!+31���;�!"������2,"�+%�+�#��)�& ,&�%���0
�./�#1�2,"���,2,#��%(�2 ,&�
& �� )!"&,�+�� $#%$%"�)� 2,"�� & ,&� & �� !""��� %(� )!"&,�+�� 2%�')� %�'3�  ,-�� /����
+%�"!)�#�)� !(� #,!"�)� !��,�#�$%#&�,�)� & ,&� & �#��2,"�,��,""�.$&!%��/�!�*�.,)�� & ,&�
& �� ',+<� %(� %/9�+&!%�"� #�+�!-�)� +%�')� /�� !�&�#$#�&�)� ,"� ,�� ,++�$&,�+�� %(� & ��
$#%$%"�)�#�',&!%�" !$�/�&2����& ����2�)�-�'%$.��&�,�)��@!"&!�*� %.�"��

�
4�;� � ��	./�)".,�B"���-�"&!*,&%#�2,"�,'"%�+%�+�#��)�2!& �%���
�./�#B"�-!�2�,/%�&�

 ,/!&,/'��#%%."�,�)�,�%& �#B"�-!�2�,/%�&� %2�& ��+%.$',!�,�&�+,��$#%&�+&� !"�%2��
$#!-,+3�/3�+'%"!�*�& ��+�#&,!�"������,'"%�+%..��&�)�& ,&� �� ,)�"�����%��-!)��+��
& ,&�& ��!.$,+&�%(�& ��$#%$�#&3�%��$'%&��:�%��& ��+%.$',!�,�&B"�*,#)���2,"�&,<���!��
&%� ,++%��&�� �!& �#� /3� 
�./�#"� %#� /3� %((!+�#"��� ��� '!* &� %(� & ��  �!* &� )!((�#��&!,'�
/�&2���� & �� &2%�$#%$�#&!�"�� & ���.� (��+��$#%$%"�)�2%�')� ,-��,� '!.!&�)��((�+&� 0!��
& ����-�"&!*,&%#B"�-!�21�%��#�)�+!�*�& ��!.$,+&�%(�& ��)�-�'%$.��&�%��& ��,.��!&!�"�
%(� & �� +%.$',!�,�&�� �"$�+!,''3� 2 ��� 3%�� +%�"!)�#� & �� #,!"�)� $,&!%� ,#�,� ,�)� & ��
 �!* &6)!"&,�+��%(�& ��(!#"&�('%%#�/�)#%%.�2!�)%2����

�
4�4� � ��$',��!�*�%((!+�#�)�,'!�*�2!& �& ��,$$'!+,&!%�� ,)�+%�"!)�#�)�& ,&�& ��(,+&�& ,&�& ��

$#%$�#&3� 2%�')� �%&� /�� )!#�+&'3� (,+!�*� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"�  %�"�� 2%�')�.�,�� & ,&� !&�
2%�')� ,-��,�.!�!.,'�!.$,+&�%��& ��+%.$',!�,�&B"�,.��!&!�"����,-!�*�-!"!&�)�& ��"!&��
 !."�'(��& ����-�"&!*,&%#�+%�"!)�#�)�& ,&�&%%�.�+ �!.$%#&,�+��2,"�*!-���&%�& ��,�*'��
/�&2����& ��&2%�$#%$�#&!�"������/,"�)�& !"�%�� !"�-!�2�& ,&�!&�2,"�+'�,#�& ,&�& ����2�
$#%$�#&3� ,�)� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"� $#%$�#&3� ,#�� G$,#,''�'� %#� ��,#'3� "%B� ,�)� "%� ,��
,)�=�,&��)!"&,�+��0���.�&#�"1�%�* &�&%� ,-��/����.,!�&,!��)��"$�+!,''3�+%�"!)�#!�*�
& �� "'%$�� %(� & �� ',�)� ,�)� & �� )!((�#��+�� !�� ('%%#� '�-�'"� 2!& !�� & �� $#%$�#&3� &%� & ��
�@!"&!�*� *#%��)� '�-�'��� ��� *%�"� %�� &%� "&,&�� & ,&� *#�,&�#� +,#�� %�* &� &%�  ,-�� /����
*!-��� &%� & �� !""��� %(� !&"� !.$,+&� %�� & �� +%.$',!�,�&B"� $#%$�#&3� /�+,�"�� %(� & �"��
(,+&%#"����

�
4�7� ���"�..,#3�& ����& ��	./�)".,�B"���-�"!&*,&%#�2,"��%&�+%�-!�+�)�& ,&�& ���%��+!'�

0/%& � %((!+�#"� ,�)� 
�./�#"1�  ,)� (�''3� &,<��� ,++%��&� %(� & �� $%&��&!,'� !.$,+&� & !"�
$#%$�#&3�.!* &� ,-��%��& ��,.��!&!�"�%(�& ��+%.$',!�,�&������,'"%�#,!"�)�& ��(,+&�& ,&�
.,&&�#"�2�#���%&�  �'$�)� /3� & ����(%#+�.��&� %((!+�#�.�,"�#!�*� & ��2#%�*�$#%$�#&3�

Page 29



����������	

������
��������������

�	
��������	�������	���������������������	�
����	���������
��	�����	��	��
���������
;�

2 !+ �,))�)�&%�& ��+%.$',!�,�&B"�+%�(�"!%��,�)�&�''!�*� !.�& ,&�& ��('%%#�'�-�'"�2�#��
2#%�*�� %�'3� &%� ',&�#� (!�)� ,�� ,$$#%-�)� $',�� " %2!�*� & �� '�-�'"� ,"� /�!'&�� � ���
#�+%..��)�)� & ,&� ,� '%+,'� "�&&'�.��&� /�� ,*#��)� /�&2���� & �� �%��+!'� ,�)� & ��
+%.$',!�,�&� ,"� !��  !"� -!�2�� .,',).!�!"&#,&!%��  ,)� /���� (%��)� ,�)� ,�� !�9�"&!+��
+,�"�)�� �� ��	./�)".,��,"<�)� & ���%��+!'� &%�+%�"!)�#�"�&&'!�*� & !"�+%.$',!�&�%��
& ��(%''%2!�*�/,"!"AC�

�
��� � ,&�,�&!.��,�)�&#%�/'��$,3.��&�/��.,)��&%�& ��+%.$',!�,�&�(%#�$�#"�!�*�& !"�

+%.$',!�&��
�

��� � ,&� & �� �%��+!'� " %�')� ,##,�*�� (%#� & �� �!"&#!+&� �,'��#� &%� $#�$,#�� ,� #�$%#&�
"�&&!�*�%�&� & ��)!.!��&!%�� !��-,'���%(�& ��$#%$�#&3�,"�,�#�"�'&�%(�& ��(,!'�#��&%�
$#%$�#'3�+%�"!)�#�& ��$',��!�*�,$$'!+,&!%���
�

4�?� � ���!"&#!+&��,'��#"�#�$%#&�),&�)��7�
,#+ ������+%�+'�)�)�& ,&�& �#�� ,)�/����,�(,''�
!�� -,'��� !�� & �� $#%$�#&3�� � 	((!+�#"�  ,-�� ,++�$&�)� & �� +%�&��&� %(� & !"� #�$%#&� ,�)�
+%.$��",&�)�& ��+%.$',!�,�&�,++%#)!�*'3�� �� ��%�&+%.��%(�& !"�+%.$',!�&�2!''�,'"%�
/��#�$%#&�)�&%�& ���%��+!'B"��&,�),#)"��%..!&&���!��)���+%�#"�����

�
7 � ��44,�4���'(��-�'�-��&0(,%�&��#4�#,�3���&01�&��#�-�
�
7��� �&,�),#)��%..!&&�����$%#&"� ,-���%2�/����,.��)�)�,�)�& ��,)%$&�)��#%+�""�"�

(%#� ��&�#.!�!�*� �',��!�*� �$$'!+,&!%�"�  ,-�� /���� + ,�*�)� &%� $#%-!)�� ,� "&,�),#)�
$,#,*#,$ � 02 �#��,$$'!+,/'�1���&!&'�)� D��$,#,&!%���!"&,�+�"E�2 �#��%((!+�#"�2!''� /��
#�=�!#�)� &%� +'�,#'3� %�&'!��� & �� #�'�-,�&� !�&�#(,+�� )!"&,�+�"� /�&2���� $#%$%"�)� ,�)�
�@!"&!�*�)�-�'%$.��&"��,�)�,'"%�2!& !��& ��"!&�B"�/%��),#!�"��

�
7��� � !'"&�	((!+�#"�,#��#�=�!#�)�&%�#�*�',#'3�,&&��)!�*�&#,!�!�*��-��&"�,�)�+%�#"�"�,"�$,#&�

%(� & �!#� �%�&!���)� �#%(�""!%�,'� ��-�'%$.��&� #�=�!#�.��&"� %(� & �� �%3,'� �%2��
�',��!�*� ��"&!&�&��� !�� �%+,'� �',��!�*� ��& %#!&!�"� & #%�* %�&� & �� �H�� & �� ���)� (%#�
�%��+!''%#� &#,!�!�*� ,"�,'"%�/����2!)�'3�,+<�%2'�)*�)�� �&�  ,"�/���� #�+%..��)�)�
/3� & ���%-�#�.��&� ,�)� -,#!%�"� %((!+!,'� /%)!�"� "�+ � ,"� & �� ��)!&� �%..!""!%�F� /3�
$%'!&!+,'�$,#&!�"F�/3�& ���%+,'��%-�#�.��&��""%+!,&!%�F�/3�& ���%3,'��%2���',��!�*�
��"&!&�&�F� ,�)� !�� -,#!%�"� !�-�"&!*,&!%�"� !�&%� '%+,'� ,�& %#!&!�"� 2 �#�� & �� $',��!�*�
"3"&�.� ,"�/����$�#+�!-�)�&%� ,-��*%���2#%�*����#�+!,''3�� !&�!"�,'"%�#�+%*�!"�)�/3�
�%��+!''%#"� & �."�'-�"�� 
%#�� & ,�� ,�3%���� & �3� #�,'!"�� & ,&� &%� )%� & �!#� 9%/�
�((�+&!-�'3�� & �3�  ,-�� &%� ��)�#"&,�)� & �� /,"!+� $',��!�*� $#!�+!$'�"� ,�)� <��$� �$� &%�
),&��%��$%'!+3�� $#%+�)�#,'� ,�)� '�*,'� + ,�*�"�� � �&� !"�$#%$%"�)� & �#�(%#��� &%���*,*��

�./�#"�>����	((!+�#"�&%*�& �#�!��,�%���),3�2%#<" %$�2 !+ �2!''� !�+'�)��,��"�(�'�
#�(#�" �#�%(� & ��%-�#,''�+%�&�@&�%(�$',��!�*�,�)�)�-�'%$.��&�+%�&#%'��� ���-��&�2!''�
,'"%�$#%-!)��,��%$$%#&��!&3� (%#�	((!+�#"�,�)�
�./�#"� &%�<��$�,/#�,"&�%(� & �� ',&�"&�
& !�<!�*�,�)�*%%)�$#,+&!+��2!& !��& ���',��!�*�$#%(�""!%���

�
7�8� �&�!"�$#%$%"�)�& ,&�
�./�#"�2!''�#�+�!-��(�&�#���$),&�6!�(%#.,&!%��#�$%#&"�%��!""��"�

& ,&� ,#!"�� %�&� %(� <�3� �$$�,'� )�+!"!%�"� %#� (�&�#�� 	./�)".,�� !�-�"&!*,&!%�"�� ,�)�
2 �#����+�"",#3��"�+�#!�*�,))!&!%�,'�&#,!�!�*�2%#<" %$"��

�
8 � �9�'1��00,(#��$#)��&01$"'#$,�4�
�
?��� � �#��,#���%��=�,'�%$$%#&��!&3�!.$'!+,&!%�"�,#!"!�*�)!#�+&'3�(#%.�& !"�#�$%#&��
�
: � �,&&��$#)��';�#)��&01$"'#$,�4�
�
:��� � �#��,#���%�+%..��!&3�",(�&3�!.$'!+,&!%�"�,#!"!�*�)!#�+&'3�(#%.�& !"�#�$%#&��
�
� � �,"'1��+��-'�����&01$"'#$,�4�
�
���� � �� + ,�*�"� !�&#%)�+�)� 2!''� ,''%2� (%#� !.$#%-�.��&� !�� & �� $#%-!"!%�� %(� $',��!�*�

"�#-!+�"�&%��!##,'B"�#�"!)��&"��
�
�
�

Page 30



����������	

������
��������������

�	
��������	�������	���������������������	�
����	���������
��	�����	��	��
���������
4�

�� � �,"'1�
�&3�(���00,(#��&01$"'#$,�4�
�
����� � ��#�$%#&�2!''�/��%(�!�&�#�"&�&%�,''�
�./�#"�%(�& ���%��+!'��
�

�� � ��&'���$+/#4��&01$"'#$,�4�
�

����� � �#��,#���%� �.,��#!* &"�!.$'!+,&!%�"�,#!"!�*�)!#�+&'3�(#%.�& !"�#�$%#&��
�

�� � ��#$<�,%�(#)��&01$"'#$,�4�
�
����� � �#��,#���%�<�%2��,�&!C$%-�#&3�!.$'!+,&!%�"�,#!"!�*�)!#�+&'3�(#%.�& !"�#�$%#&��
�
�. � �,"$'1���"1�4$,���&01$"'#$,�4�
�
�8��� � �#��,#���%�<�%2��"%+!,'�!�+'�"!%��!.$'!+,&!%�"�,#!"!�*�)!#�+&'3�(#%.�& !"�#�$%#&��
�
�2 � �'"*+(,��-��'0�(4�
�
�;��� � ��(%''%2!�*�/,+<*#%��)�$,$�#�2,"��"�)�!��& ��$#�$,#,&!%��%(�& !"�#�$%#&A�

�
��$%#&�&%��',��!�*��%..!&&���%������������7�#�����6���76447��

�
�5 � ��",&&��-'#$,�4�
�
�4��� 
�./�#"�,#��,"<�)�&%��%&��& ��#�$%#&�,�)�& ��%/"�#-,&!%�"�%(�& ����	��,�)�
�
�4��� ��+%..��)� &%� �,/!��&� & ,&� 
�./�#"� %(� & �� �',��!�*� �%..!&&��� ��)�#&,<��

��(#�" �#� &#,!�!�*� !�� & �� /,"!+"� %(� �',��!�*�>���-�'%$.��&��%�&#%'�� !�� ,� %��� ),3�
2%#<" %$�,"�"�&�%�&�,&�7���,/%-���

�
�
�
�
���(����
�!#�+&%#�%(���+ �!+,'���#-!+�"�
�
�
�
� !"�#�$%#&�2,"�$#�$,#�)�/3�
,&& �2��,-!�"�%(�& ����-�'%$.��&��%�&#%'���+&!%��2 %�+,��
/��+%�&,+&�)�%��7�7���;7�
�
�
�

�

�',��!�*��%..!&&����C�8C��
��

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee 01 June 2006 Page

EAST AREA

APP/2006/5560/EITEM WARD Bidston and St James

Erection of 33 dwellings and garages and associated road works 

Land adjacent to 84 Statham Road Bidston Wirral CH43 7XS

Proposal

Location:

JS Bloor (Wilmslow) Ltd
Dean Court

85 Adlington Road
Wilmslow
Cheshire
SK9 2BT

Applicant: J S Bloor (Services) Ltd
Ashby Road

Measham
Swadlingtcote
Derbyshire
DE12 7JP

Agent:

Planning History: OUT/2004/6754/E -  35 dwellings with access from Statham Road.  Withdrawn 

20/10/04.

OUT/2004/7662/E - Erection of 33 dwellings and garages and associated road works.
Approved 28/01/2005.

APP/2005/7333/E - Erection of 33 dwellings and garages and associated road works.
Withdrawn 07/12/05.

Development Plan

allocation and policies: 

Primarily Residential Area, UDP; Policies HS4, GR7, TR9, NC7 and the Eleanor Road 
Development Brief
Regional Spatial Strategy; Policy DP3.

Representations and 
consultations

Representations:

Residential properties surrounding the site were notified by letter. 

Comments were received by:

Wirral Wildlife. Requests a bat surveyor be present when trees with cavities are taken 
down and bat boxes put up on remaining trees. Concern is raised with the large beech 
tree adjacent to 87. More native landscaping should be included in scheme and wood 
removed from site should be made into habitat piles. 

Merseytravel request a travel plan and require developer to construct all internal 
highway arrangements, inc. access roads, to a standard & format that would permit 
ease of access for Merseylink Dial-A-Ride vehicles to buildings on site. Request good 
quality walking routes on site and to the nearest bus stop and developer should fund 

relevant bus facilities to best practice standards.

Beechwood and Ballantyne Community Housing Association object to the 
development as they state the developer of the site requires a deed of easement to lay 
surface water sewers across there land at 26 Hillfoot Close.

Wirral Society Comment: Although the boundaries of the site have been extended to 
include part of the garden of No 81 Eleanor Road we welcome the fact that the 
developer has
not applied to increase the number of houses already allowed by outline permission.

We have not commented on the style of houses or materials to be used in their 
construction and rely on the  planning officers to ensure they meet the criteria set out 
for Zone 3 of the Eleanor Road Planning Brief. They should meet much higher 
standards than those on the adjoining Cricketers' Estate.

Our present concerns are as follows:

1.  Some 50% of the boundary of No 65 Eleanor Rd is adjacent to this site.
The removal of trees and green cover which has already taken place has left No 65 

exposed to unwelcome visitors.   The two residents, Mrs. J Middlebrook who is the 
sole carer for her husband, Prof. Middlebrook, and they are both in their 80's. 
Intruders have already been onto their property on a number of occasions. We would 
ask the planning officers to ensure that permanent and substantial fencing be Page 33



Planning Committee 01 June 2006 Page

EAST AREA

Directors comments: Proposal

This is a full planning application for the erection of 33 dwellings, garages and 
associated works. It arises as an amended version of an approved outline application 
for 33 dwellings with planning permission granted for means of access and siting of 
the development and a subsequent withdrawn application for 31 houses. 

Site and Surroundings

The site is allocated for primarily residential uses within the Unitary Development Plan 
and currently forms large gardens for houses that are accessed from Eleanor Road.

A tree preservation order covers the site, which lies within zones 2 and 3 of the 
Eleanor Road design Brief.

The application site has increased in size from the original outline application with 
approval for 33 dwellings. The new proposal now includes an area of land east of 85 

and 87 Eleanor Road.
The area for zone 2 is some 0.37 hectares where 7.5 detached dwellings would be 
erected.  Zone 3 is approximately 0.93 hectares and would contain 25.5 dwellings. 
This would be compliant with the density requirements of the Eleanor Road design 
Brief and would therefore be in keeping with the character of the overall area.

The proposed layout of the development is roughly a 'T' shape with  a the new 
expanded area grafted on to the north of the development.  Access into the site 
gained by extending the existing carriageway at Statham Road.  The site is bounded 
on all sides by residential properties including detached two-storey dwellings to the 

north of the site on Statham Road, large detached dwellings with large gardens to the 
east and south and two storey terrace dwellings on Hillfoot Close to the west.

constructed  along the boundary between the site and No. 65 as a matter of some 
urgency in order to protect two extremely vulnerable people and to secure their 
property.
2.  At the moment the level of the site which is nearest to No 65 appears to be much 

higher than the adjoining property.  We are concerned that with trees and green cover 
now removed, surface water will drain onto No 65 with adverse effects for the property 
owners. We trust that the level will be lowered before building commences and ask 
the planning officers to obtain assurance from the developer that measures will be 
taken to prevent any ingress of surface water.

Letters & e-mails have been received from the occupiers of 2 Lymm, 53 Eleanor 
Road, 55 School Lane, 4 Edgebaston Way, 59, 78 & 80 Statham Road Objecting to 
the development on the grounds that:

1. It will cause major traffic implications and disruption to residents.
2. Traffic safety issues
3. The density of dwellings will change the character of the area.
4. Inappropriate design compared with neighbouring dwellings.
5. Questioning the removal of trees

6. Why there is no restriction on working hours
7. Devaluation of property in the area
8. Loss of natural environment and views
9. Contractor disruption.

Consultations:

Direction of Regeneration (pollution control): No objection.

Director of Technical Services (Traffic): No objection.

Crime Reduction & Architectural Liaison Comment that 1.8m is insufficient to protect 
22/33 which back onto Hillfoot Close.  They would like to see 2m with a steep pitched 
coping as a minimum.

Page 34



Planning Committee 01 June 2006 Page

EAST AREA

Issues & Assessment

The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are principle of 
development, highway safety and car parking, design and site layout, residential 
amenity, noise/pollution and landscaping issues.

A Bat Survey carried out on the site indicates that the vast majority of trees to be 

removed show no potential to support bat roost and thereby the removal of these 
trees is accepted in advance by the bat specialist.

The Arboricultural Implication study has been broken into two sections. This indicates 
90 trees out of 209 are to be retained on the original T shaped site. The report goes 

on to say that within the additional area to the north there is no predominant species 
in the mixed woodland and a total exclusion zone is not practical on this site. A 
significant proportion of those to be felled have been identified as sycamore and other 
species such as horse chestnut, beech or cherry are in poor condition. The retention 
of a mixture of natural, well established trees together with replacement planting to be 

conditioned should ensure the proposed development will blend satisfactorily into the 
landscape on the lower slopes of Bidston Hill.

Comments from the tree preservation officer indicate that whilst he does not have any 
objections to the proposed scheme he considers the site to be of a sensitive nature 

and those trees to be retained should be protected and as such, it is proposed to 
condition any approval that no work begins on site until suitable protective fencing as 
outlined in British standard BS 5837:2005 Trees in relation to Construction, has been 
erected and checked by the Tree Preservation Officer. The Tree Officer should be 
notified of any changes/issues involving trees on site. Conditions should be put in 

place specifying no changes in gradient within the protective zones of trees and no 
movement of  machinery through these zones. Any driveways, parking areas or 
hardstanding to be constructed within the canopy spread of these trees should be 
constructed using a no dig method, using a cellular confinement system and specialist 
permeable surfacing, such as Cooper Clarke Geo Block. Relevant arboricultural 

works should be carried out before commencement of the development.

The mix of housing types, building heights, designs and massing of the proposed 
development should blend in well with the existing housing stock without prejudicing 
the woodland character of Eleanor Road as intended by the Eleanor Road 

Development Brief. 

The proposed scale of the development is consistent with that of the surrounding area 
and densities provided on site are consistent with the terms of the Eleanor Road 
Design Brief. 

It is considered that the proposed layout of the houses on the enlarged site will offer 
increased spacing between plots which will relate the proposed development to its 
surroundings and allow maintenance of the existing natural features and vegetation. 
The plots allow for sufficient amenity space, relate well to the surrounding properties 

in terms of size and design and allow satisfactory provision of off street parking and 
garages.

The proposed smaller two-storey dwellings located along the eastern boundary will 
relate well with the existing housing stock located on the Beechwood Estate and 

those larger house within the scheme allow for a mix of both housing size and style.

It is considered that the development will have a minimal impact upon the amenities 
of the neighbouring properties in terms of material overlooking, size and 
overshadowing and the development would not result in any detriment to amenity of 

existing residents, provided that the overall design meets adopted guidelines.

Having consulted the Agent amended plans were sought in order to secure a layout 
which met with the Councils usual requirements with regard to separation distances 
and provision of amenity space. As a result a number of house types were swapped 

around and slightly moved. Page 35



Planning Committee 01 June 2006 Page

EAST AREA

In order to maintain sufficient privacy between the existing dwellings located along 
Hillfoot Close and Newdales Close and the new dwellings proposed on plots 23 to 33, 
a 2m high close board fence should be erected along the boundary. The development 

is now considered acceptable and of a high environmental standard. Car parking is 
provided at 2 spaces per dwelling.

The proposal is acceptable in terms of the criteria set out in Policy HS4, GR7, TR9, 
NC7 and the Eleanor Road Development Brief of Wirral's Unitary Development Plan 

2000 and RSS Policy DP3.

Recommendation: Approve

Full planning permission: standard commencement date. (C03A)
Samples of the materials to be submitted and approved prior to commencement (C59B)

Detailed landscaping scheme to be agreed prior to commencement (C71A)
Replacement of diseased planting for a period of 5 years from completion. (C71G)
Details of floor levels and surrounding ground levels to be submitted and approved prior 
to commencement. (C65C)
Hardsurfacing of driveways before dwelling occupied. (C61D)

Development according to plans received on 18th May 2006. (C24C)
Prior to the dwellings hereby approved being occupied, a 2m high close board fence shall 
be erected along the western boundary of the development between plots 23 to 33 and the 
existing dwellings located on Newdales Close and Hillfoot Close and retained thereafter.
Prior to the commencement of the development details of the protective zones around tree 

to remain shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority 
before the development is brought into use. There shall be no changes in gradient within 
the approved protective zones or movement of machinery through these zones.
Relevant arboricultural works should be carried out before commencement of the 
development.

Bat boxes shall be erected in suitable areas in and along the retained trees and 
woodland of which details shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before the development is brought into use and retained thereafter.
Details of proposed bin storage to be shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority before the development is brought into use.

Before any works are undertaken, the site must be surveyed* for the presence of Japanese 
Knotweed and a copy of this survey sent to the Local Planning Authority. Please note that 
Japanese Knotweed can be far more extensive than the visible parts on the surface and 
that the underground parts of the plant may extend laterally up to 7 meters beyond this. 
Therefore, this survey must also note any knotweed adjoining the site. If Japanese 

Knotweed is confirmed, full details of a scheme for its eradication and/or control shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
work on site, and the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement of 
the use of the building(s).
*by an approved environmental consultant

The design of the vehicular access and parking areas, shall take account of all trees 
situated on or off site and must be in line with appropriate guide lines (BS 5837: 'Trees 
in Relation to Construction' 2005 and Arboricultural Advisory and Information Service, 
Practice Note 'Driveways Close to Trees 1996'). The driveway / parking areas, which are 
within 4 m of existing trees, must be constructed utilising minimum excavation techniques 

incorporating appropriate surfaces to avoid damage to trees and to withstand any 
influence of existing trees with regard to future potential indirect/direct tree related 
damage. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority technical details of the proposed driveway / 
parking, which are within 4m of existing trees, to include their dimensions (in relation 

to existing ground levels), specifications (materials) and when they are to be 
constructed in relation to other development works.
Agreement to be reached on site prior to development commences on tree protection 
measures. (C71M)

 1
 2

 3
 4
 5

 6

 7
 8

 9

 10

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15

Condition(s):

Summary of Decision: The proposal complies with Policy HS4, GR7, TR9, NC7 and the Eleanor Road 
Development Brief of Wirral's Unitary Development Plan and Regional Spatial 

Strategy policy DP3.  It is therefore considered that the proposal is of such a scale as 
to be appropriate to the surrounding area and will not result in a detrimental change in 
the character of the area.

Page 36



Planning Committee 01 June 2006 Page

EAST AREA

No development or other operations shall commence on site until adequate steps, which 
have previously been agreed with the Local Planning Authority, have been taken to 
safeguard against damage or injury during construction works, all trees on the site or 
whose root structure may extend within the site, which are subject of Tree Preservation 

Order. The Tree Preservation Orders affected are Wirral Borough Council No 60 and County 
Borough of Birkenhead 16/49.  In particular, no excavations, site works, trenches or 
channels shall be cut or pipes or services laid in such a way to cause damage or injury 
to the trees by interference with their root structure and no soil or waste shall be 
deposited on the land in such a position as to be likely to cause damage or injury to the 

trees by affecting their root structure.

 16

Reason for conditions

Standard (CR86)
In the interests of visual amenity. Policy EM6 or HS4 of the UDP (CR66)
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Policy GR5 of the UDP (CR79)
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Policy GR5 of the UDP (CR79)
To ensure satisfactory appearance and prevent overlooking. Policy HS4 (Criteria for New 

Housing Development) of the UDP (CR76).
Highway safety (CR13)
For the avoidance of doubt. (CR33)
In the interests of amenity. (CR17)
To protect trees which are of significant amenity value to the area. Policy GR7 of the 

UDP (CR80)
To protect trees which are of significant amenity value to the area. Policy GR7 of the 
UDP (CR80)
In the interest of protecting bat species.
To ensure a satisfactory development. (CR42)

To protect trees which are of significant amenity value to the area. Policy GR7 of the 
UDP (CR80)
To ensure that existing third party trees are not damaged or put under pressure of 
removal due to actual or perceived risk of potential driveway damage which will maintain 
the visual and environmental quality of the site and surrounding area.

To ensure site works adequately protect the trees. Policy GR7 of the UDP (CR81)
To protect trees which are of significant amenity value to the area. Policy GR7 of the 
UDP (CR80)

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5

 6
 7
 8
 9

 10

 11
 12

 13

 14

 15
 16

Last Comments By: 04 May 2006

Notes:

Advisory:
Japanese Knotweed has been reported on or near this site. It is a highly invasive weed 

that is capable of structural damage. Disturbance will cause it to spread and its 
movement is controlled by legislation. Under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 it is 
illegal to cause it to spread in the Non-standard reason: wild. You are strongly advised 
to survey the site for the presence of Japanese Knotweed at an early stage and before any 
site clearance work and, if found, to formulate plans to control or eradicated it. Please 

note that Japanese Knotweed can be far more extensive than the visible parts on the 
surface and that the underground parts of the plants may extend laterally up to 7 meters 
beyond removal due to actual or perceived risk of potential driveway damage. Which will 
maintain this. Knotweed in adjoining land may affect the site and should be noted and 
considered. Detailed the visual and environmental quality of the site and surrounding 

area. Detailed advice is given in these Knotweed Web Sites:
http://www.devon.gov.uk/environment/natural_environment/biodiversity/japanese_knotweed.htm
http://www.environmentagency.gov.uk/commondata/103599/cop_for_jap_knot_899878.doc

56 Day Expires On: 17 May 2006

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Standards Hearing Panel - 16 July
	Standards (Consideration meeting) - 7 August

	3 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter and Current Performance
	Ombudsman Review
	Appendix 2

	4 Complaint to Local Government Ombudsman - Residential Development Off Statham Road, Noctorum
	Planning Committee Report
	Plan


